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D Conference Committee 

Exp anation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to medication administration in primary and secondary public schools and 
exemptions from the Nurse Practices Act. 

Minutes: attached testimony 1, 2, 3 

Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on HB 1276. 

Rep. Porter: Todd Porter district 34, Mandan introduced and supports the bill. This bill 
creates a new section in the chapter dealing with schools talking about the administration of 
medication. Section 2 exempts schools from the Nurse Practices Act for administration of 
medication. 

Rep. Laning: (1 :57) Section 2 seems incomplete, is it missing something or is it an add
on? 

Rep. Porter: The wording is from the Nurse Practices act so it is not incomplete. When 
drafted they picked that paragraph. 

Rep. Mooney: Are we including personnel other than school nurses to accommodate 
schools that might not have school nurses on staff? 

Rep. Porter: Yes. 

John Martinson: With NO School Boards Association. (3:31) The issue of 
administrating medication in schools without liability protection and without training has 
persisted for years. We have tried in past legislative sessions to have something done 
about this. Last session our proposed bill was not supported so we are back with a new 
plan. At this point the school secretary or teachers administer the medication at the request 
of parents. They can opt out if uncomfortable dispensing medication, etc. and this also 
includes an exemption for liability for those employees who do choose to provide this 
service. It provides an opportunity for training which we think is necessary. The training can 
be burdensome. Teachers are busy enough teaching and don't have the time for lengthy 
training. 

Rep. Mooney: (6:02) You said you were providing for training, where is that in here? 
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John Martinson: The training isn't outlined in detail. The training could be in the 
administrative rules with the Department of Public Instruction. It is not specified in law. 

Rep. Fehr: If a student has particular medical needs and staff is not comfortable 
administering medication and they opt out, does that mean the students' needs won't be 
met? 

John Martinson: It's possible that they won't. 

Bev Neilson, NO Council of Educational Leaders: (7:34) We have federal and state 
mandates that require us to provide extensive services to children with special needs and 
have no funding for school nurses. Over the years the practice has been who is there all 
the time hands those pills to the kids. Probably not very legal, in reality no other options but 
to quit providing that service to the parents. Our first choice would be funding of school 
nurses. This bill protects the school and kids. We need permission to do it and liability 
protection. 

Kayla Pulvermacher in for Dakota Draper, Representing NO Education Association: 
testified in support of the bill. (10:47) (See Testimony #1) 

Rep. Silbernagel: How many schools in NO so not have nurses? 

Kayla Pulvermacher: The vast majority do not have school nurses. 

Dr. Constance Kalanek, RN Executive Director of NO Board of Nursing: (12:36) 
testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #2) 

Vice-Chair Hofstad: (15:35) Explain to me the educational component that is within 
subsection 9, would the board of nursing be a part of that? How would you envision that 
working? 

Or. Constance Kalanek: No I don't believe we would be. The authority for medication 
administration programs 1 and 2 was given to the Health Dept. at a previous session. 

Rep. Porter: Maybe it would be prudent that you and Dr. Martinson get together and work 
through what amendments would be necessary so the components from what they are 
looking for and from nurse practices act worked in harmony since both agree of the final 
intent. 

Dr. Constance Kalanek: Certainly, with our legal counsel at the table. 

Chairman Weisz: Further questions from the committee? Anyone else in support of 1276? 
Anyone here in opposition? 

Karen McDonald, RN and a lobbyist representing NO Nurses Association: testified in 
opposition to the bill. (17:36) (See Testimony #3) 



House Human Services Committee 
HB 1276 
January 22 , 2 013 
P ag e 3 

Rep. Muscha: Would the training be able to be done by the county nurse coming to the 
school? 

Karen McDonald: That is an option. For very small schools my belief is the parent could 
give the required education if approved by the school board. Larger schools would have the 
advantage of having a school nurse to be involved in the training. 

Chairman Weisz: Closed hearing. 
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D Conference Committee 

Ex anation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to medication administration in primary and secondary public schools and 
exemptions from the Nurse Practices Act. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Weisz: Opened HB 1276 

Attached Testimony 1,2,3 

Rep. Porter: Had hearing on 1276 to deal with medication administration situation in 
schools across NO. Dr. Kalanek, State board of Nursing, was in support of the bill and had 
concerns with language written in the bill. The Nurses Association was opposed to the bill in 
its present form. I asked Dr. Martinson and Dr. Kalanek to come up with an amendment to 
the bill to do what they both felt was needed to get this moving forward. What you have in 
front of you is the amendment that came from their meeting. He referred to testimony by 
Nurses Association and this addresses their concerns they had also. (2:24) Will take any 
questions on this particular set of amendments. 

Chairman Weisz: On subsection 2 the language seems a little stiff. 

Rep. Porter: I think they wanted to be clear if they were hired as a licensed health care 
provider that they can't opt out but a teacher or classified staff member who is not can. 

Rep. Muscha: The original one says administer but that probably has a whole different 
connotation because they're not a school. You are not really administering but you are 
providing. 

Rep. Porter: You are administering, providing is administering. I am sure they thought that 
covered the whole scope of what they were doing. 

Chairman Weisz: It is legal for a student to have his antibiotics with him and pop the pill on 
his own? 

Rep. Porter: I think some schools have policies that say all medications must come 
through the office. It is a local decision and policy. 
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Rep. Silbernagel: Is the training then also a local decision as far as the necessary training 
to be adequately trained? 

Rep. Porter: On page 2 of the mark-up and then on the bottom page 1, line 18 of the a 
amendment, it talks about a program established under section 15.1 19-23. So this puts it 
back into the school section of the code that says that there will be some sort of medication 
administration program that they will have to develop. 

Rep. Fehr: This only relates to non-public schools and I was wondering why that change 
was made and what does it mean in terms of public schools? 

Rep. Porter: The title part was an error; it does apply to all primary and secondary schools. 
By over striking public now it includes all schools. Line 12 is saying the board of a school 
district, Mandan as an example public school district takes care of Mandan public schools, 
the school board for St. Joe's Catholic school, the governing body of a non-public school 
take care of their own situation. It gives them both the ability to use this law. 

Rep. Kiefert: How broad a spectrum of medications are we talking about, does this include 
everything? 

Rep. Porter: As in my kid's school, if it is an Advil, they turn it into the office and go to the 
office to get it. It is the local school districts decision on how they handle that. This is just 
giving them a mechanism to do it and the ability for that teacher or school secretary if they 
are uncomfortable to opt out. 

Rep. Fehr: Move that we adopt the amendment provided to us. 

Chairman Weisz: Motion is second by Rep. Looysen 

Chairman Weisz: Any further discussion on the amendment? IT is the amended adopted 
by the board of nursing and the school board association. All in favor, 13 yes, 0 no, 
amendment is adopted. 

Rep. Hofstad: I move a do pass as amended. 

Chairman Weisz: We have a motion by Rep. Hofstad, Rep. Silbernagel second. 
13-0 do pass, Rep. Mooney will carry. 
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Title.02 000 

Adopted by the Human Services Committee i \ � 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 12 76 

Pag e 1, line 1, replace "a new section to chapter 15.1-19" with "section 15.1-19-23 " 

Pag e 1, line 3 ,  remove "public" 

Pag e 1, line 3 ,  remove "nurse practices" 

Pag e 1, line 4, replace "act" with "Nurse Practices Act" 

Pag e 1, line 6 ,  replace "A new section to chapter 15.1-19" with "Section 15.1-19-23 " 

Pag e 1, line 8, replace "Administration of medication" with "15.1-19-23. Medication 
program - Establishment" 

Pag e 1, line 8, after "Liability" insert "- Immunity from liability" 

11 
t\ 

Pag e 1, line 9, remove "A teacher or classified staff member who is not employed as a school 
nurse or" 

Pag e 1, replace lines 1 0 and 11 with "The board of a school district or the governing body of a 
nonpublic school may establish a program for providing medication to students that 
includes authorizing individuals to provide medication to a student if the individual has 
received education and training in medication administration and has received written 
consent of the student's parent or guardian. 

2 .  A teacher o r  classified staff member, who is not employed as a licensed 
health care provider to provide medication, may choose to not provide 
medication under the program established under subsection 1." 

Pag e 1, line 12 , replace "�" with "3 ." 

Pag e 1, line 12 , replace "administer" with "provide" 

Pag e 1, line 12 , replace "by section 43 -12 .1-04" with "under subsection 1, or a school district, 
the board of a school district. or the governing body of a non public school that 
establishes a program for providing medication to students" 

Pag e 1, line 14, replace "administering" with "providing" 

Pag e 1, line 18, after "school" insert "under a program established under section 15. 1-19-23 " 

Renumber according ly 

Pag e No.1 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_13_016 
Carrier: Mooney 

Insert LC: 13.8211.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1276: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1276 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "a new section to chapter 15.1-19" with "section 15.1-19-23" 

Page 1, line 3, remove "public" 

Page 1, line 3, remove "nurse practices" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "act" with "Nurse Practices Act" 

Page 1, line 6, replace "A new section to chapter 15.1-19" with "Section 15.1-19-23" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "Administration of medication" with "15.1-19-23. Medication 
program - Establishment" 

Page 1, line 8, after "Liability" insert "- Immunity from liability" 

Page 1, line 9, remove "A teacher or classified staff member who is not employed as a 
school nurse or" 

Page 1, replace lines 1 0 and 11 with "The board of a school district or the governing body of 
a nonpublic school may establish a program for providing medication to students that 
includes authorizing individuals to provide medication to a student if the individual 
has received education and training in medication administration and has received 
written consent of the student's parent or guardian. 

2. A teacher or classified staff member, who is not employed as a licensed 
health care provider to provide medication. may choose to not provide 
medication under the program established under subsection 1." 

Page 1, line 12, replace "2." with "3." 

Page 1, line 12, replace "administer" with "provide" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "by section 43-12.1-04" with "under subsection 1. or a school 
district. the board of a school district, or the governing body of a nonpublic school 
that establishes a program for providing medication to students" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "administering" with "providing" 

Page 1, line 18, after "school" insert "under a program established under section 15.1-19-23" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_13_016 
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3/18/2013 

20056 

D C onference C omm ittee 

�.,;ommittee Cle rk Sig natu re 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

R elating to med ication admin istration in  primary or secondary publ ic schools and 
exemptions from the n u rse practices act. 

Minutes: See attached testimony 

Chairwoman J. Lee O pens the publ ic hearing on E ng rossed H B  1276 

Rep. Porter, i ntroduces the H B  1276 to the comm ittee. E ng rossed HB 1276 wa s a sked for 
by N D  School Board Association .  Th e premise of th e bi l l  is to deal with admin istra tion of 
med ications in  th e school ,  by u nl icensed indivi d uals. C hairwoman J L ee asks a bout the 
provision in secti on 2 of E ng rossed H B  1276. 

Jon Martinson with th e N orth Dakota Sch ool Boa rd Association .  T estifies in fa vor of 
E ng rossed H B  1276. See attached Testimony #1 Chairwoman J. lee a sked a bout 
tra in ing and education . Senator Larsen ask s  about g rade level one could take ca re of their 
own med ication needs. Senator Anderson, d iscusses about pol icies that Depa rtment of 
Pub l ic I nstructi on ( DPI) a bout administrating med ications, and why the change on how we 
ad m i nistrate med ica tions now. 

Karen McDonald lobbyist for the N D  N urses Associa tion: Favors E ng rossed H B  1276 a s  
amended . Th e bi l l  g ives a statu ary reference for who is responsible. Ms.  McDona ld 
explains th e N urses practice act. 

Dr. Constance B. Kalanek executive director for the NO board of nursing. T estifies in  
favor of H B  1276 as amended . Th e board of nursing does support E ng rossed HB 1276 . 
T he boards has worked with schools administrators to sa fely and effectively as possible 
provide med ications to the students. Chairwoman J lee asks about how the rules wou ld be 
developed . 

Kirsten Baesler state supernatant of North Dakota Public Instruction: testifies in fa vor 
of E ng rossed HB 1276 as amended . We are ask ing for is th e abi l ity for local di stricts to 
determ ine wh at th ey need to provide. School boards are a lways cog ni za nt of their l ia bi l ity, 
and air of ca uti on. I bel ieve we sh ou ld trust th ese elected officials to create the train ing that 



Senate Human Services Committee 
Engrossed HB 1276 
3/18/13 
Page 2 

wi ll  be necessary in their d istricts, I don't th ink that it should be req uired of our teachers and 
support staff in  a local school d istrict t hat has the min imal req uirement at that point of their 
service to be req u i red to receive train ing when the need is not t here at t hat point,  when the 
needs change I bel ieve o u r  local school boards have the authorit y  t o  react q u ickly and 
effectively. I bel ieve that we do need to work with local providers wit h i n  t heir local 
com m u n ity helping the tra in ing,  and pol icy. 

Dakota Draper representing the N orth Dakota E d ucation Association ( N D E A) t estifies in  
Favor of  E ng rossed H B  1276 . See attached testimony #2 

Darleen Bartz Health R esources Section C h ief for the N orth Dakota Department of Healt h . 
Test ified neutral for E ngrossed H B  1276. Proposed amendments t o  the eng rossed H B  
1276 . There i s  a d iscussion about to whom the proposed amendments were sent t o  . . 

Senator Larson asked how many nurses are working in  t he schools. Senator Anderson 
asks about supervision entai l. 

Jon Martinson: comments about the proposed amendments. Chairman J. Lee d iscusses 
about the exemption from t he nurses registry. Senator Anderson: asks about the 
volu nteer and teachers. Senator Dever: who is a classified staff member? Chairwoman J. 
Lee t a lks about taking care of students with special needs in t he ed ucation settin g .  There is 
a d iscussion about parenteral .  There is a d iscussion about having a n u rse in every school. 

J .  lee closes public hearing on E ngrossed H B  1276 
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Senate Human Services Committee 
R ed R iver R oom,  Stat e Cap it ol 

Committee Clerk Signature 

E ngr ossed HB 1276 
3/18/13 
20098 

0 C onference C ommitt ee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

"C l ick her e  t o  t yp e  rea son for intr oduct ion of bi l l/r esolut ion" 

Minutes: Committee Work 

Chairwoman J. lee op ens t he comm itt ee d iscussion on E ng rossed HB 1276 

Senator Anderson: ta lks a bout Da rleen t est ifying .  

Senator Anderson mot ions to a dopt Amendment 

Senator Larsen Seconds 

Senator Axness supp ort s t he a mendment ,  when t he school boa rd if t h is wou ld create 
a dd it iona l pr oblems for t hem t hey couldn't come up wit h one. 

Chairwoman J. Lee ta lks a bout l ia bi l it y . 

Senator Dever: ta lks a bout t ra in ing a nd ed ucat ion.  

Adopt Amendment 5-0-0 
Senator Anderson mot ions for a Do Pa ss a s  Amended 

Senator Larsen seconds 

Senator Anderson comment s: I get t ir ed of legislat or a dopt ing rules for t he g ood of the 
p eop le a nd t hen t he stat e com ing t o  us, a nd t hen we need ex empt ion beca use it 's cheap er. 
B ut we t el l  t he r est of t he p eop le but you ca n't ha ve ex empt ion it' s cheap er or not, a nd I g et 
t ir ed of t hat, but I a m  not opp osed t o  t he b i l l .  

Do Pass as Amended 5-0-0 
Senator Anderson will  ca rr y 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1276 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections" 

Page 1, line 1, after "15.1-19-23" insert ", and 23-44-03" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, after "Act" insert ", and the exemption of medication administration in primary or 
secondary schools from the nurse aide registry" 

Page 1, after line 22, insert: 

"SECTION 2. Section 23-44-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

23-44-03. Exemption. 

Medication administration by an individual within a primary or secondary school 
under a program established under section 15.1-19-23 is exempt from the 
requirements of this chapter, if the individual has received education and training in 
medication administration and has received written consent of the student's parents or 
guardian." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 13.8211.02001 
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Date: 3-/?(�/3 
Roll Call Vote #: --1----

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 

ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 

Senate Human Services Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 13. f? c//. Q e:. Oo/ � -c1e 0.302CJ 

Action Taken: D Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended �Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Seu. 1\Jdecs,o;J 

Senators Yes 
Chariman Judy Lee v-
Vice Chairman Oley Larsen (.,...--

Senator Dick Dever v--

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. _.,....... 

Seconded By Se& I a rs ed 

No Senator Yes 
Senator Tyler Axness -

No 

Total (Yes) 
_____ _.,:;--::..._ ___ No -----'-..L._ ________ _ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 

ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1 Z 7 6 
Senate Human Services Committee 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: $... Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass � Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Seci. bt-\derso,N Seconded By c;:>(;}N. la.cseA/ 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes 
Chariman Judy Lee / Senator Tyler Axness v----
Vice Chairman Oley Larsen v 
Senator Dick Dever v 
Senator Howard A nderson , Jr. _r_ 

Total 

No 

(Yes) S No 0 ----------�------- --�-------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment Se;J. A.Jd er ¢oA/ 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_ 48_014 
Carrier: Anderson 

Insert LC: 13.8211.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1276, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so· amended, recommends 
DO PASS (5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1276 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections" 

Page 1 . line 1, after "15.1-19-23" insert ", and 23-44-03" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, after "Act" insert ", and the exemption of medication administration in primary 
or secondary schools from the nurse aide registry" 

Page 1, after line 22, insert: 

"SECTION 2. Section 23-44-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

23-44-03. Exemption. 

Medication administration by an individual within a primary or secondary 
school under a program established under section 15.1-19-23 is exempt from the 
requirements of this chapter, if the individual has received education and training in 
medication administration and has received written consent of the student's parents 
or guardian." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_ 48_014 
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TESTIMONY OF DAKOTA DRAPER, 
NORTH DAKOTA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION 

HB 1276 
January 22, 2013 

Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee: 

My name is Dakota Draper and I'm here representing North Dakota Education 

Association (NDEA). I stand in favor to HB 1 27 6. 

As educators we are committed to doing all that we can to help ensure the 

safety of North Dakota students and the people who work in schools. Because 

in many districts student medical needs have become more common and labor 

intensive, teachers and classified employees are being asked to perform 

medical procedures that they are not trained for and are not comfortable with. 

Along with NDEA's testimony, I am submitting the testimony of a member that 

could not be here today, Audrey Haskell from Grand Forks. Her testimony details 

such an experience she had caring for a student with a feeding tube. This 

legislation will prevent others from having to perform a procedure that they are 

ill-trained for and are uncomfortable doing. 

What this bill does for teachers is threefold: First, it gives teachers and classified 

employees the liability protection they need to dispense medication to students 

who need it. Second, for those that choose to take on this important task, it 

provides training that they need to dispense the medication correctly. Finally, it 

gives teachers and classified employees the ability to "opt out" of performing 

such a task that they may be uncomfortable with. 

Thank you for the opportunity to address this important topic on the behalf of 

the members of NDEA. I am available for any questions from the committee. 



Testimony of Audrey Haskell 
20 year school employee at Lewis & Clark Elementary School 

Contact address and phone: 
806 S. 1oth St., Grand Forks, NO 58201 

(701- 739-1210) 
I had on ly been a sp eci al educati on p ara for t wo years when I was asked t o  t ake an additi on al 
s umm er school P ara-p rofessi on al  assi gnm ent workin g wit h severely m edi cal ly chal len ged st udent s. 
H avin g  up unti l n ow on ly worked wit h st udent s wit h  vari ous learnin g chal len ges, I was wi l lin g t o  gi ve it 
a t ry. I was assi gn ed t o  a fou rt een year  old boy we' l l cal l  Josh who was b lin d, deaf an d had t o  be 
t ran sferred in an d o ut of a wheelchai r  to be di ap ered an d use t herap y  eq uipm ent. A ll hi s food cam e 
in p re-m easured bags an d had t o  be hooked t o  a feedin g p ort on t he si de of hi s st om ach. 

D u rin g t he fi rst d ay, I was showed how t o  t ran sfer Josh t he safest way p ossi ble for bot h  of us. H e  was sti 
a g rowin g 14 y r. old wit h  t he added d an ger of m uscle sp asm s  t hat m eant flyin g feet an d flai lin g a rm s  an d 
e lbows. W e  went t hrou g h  t he di ap erin g p rocess an d I was showed h ow t o  op en t he feedin g bags wit hout 
lettin g it squi rt a l l  over before secu rin g it t o  t he p ort an d di sconn ect t o  clean it when empt y. Trainin g was 
d on e. 

Day t wo st a rt ed wit h  bein g n ervous about t he t hin gs I kn ew would be m y  resp on si bi lit y for Josh. To m y  
deli g ht, it a l l  went wel l  an d on t he way h om e  deci ded it was goin g t o  b e  fin e  for t he rest of t he si x week 
assi gnm ent. 

Day t hree was a di fferent st ory. The m ornin g p assed wit hout in ci dent an d as l un chtim e g ot closer, I wasr 
n ea rly as app rehen si ve as t he d ay before. A s  t he rest of t he st aff was scurryin g a ro un d  p rep a rin g t o  g et 
� he ot her st udent s fed, I foun d m yself a lon e  in t he room wit h  Josh. I warm ed Josh' s  l un ch bag a bit li ke I 
vv as s hown an d p ul led t he p lu g  t o  att ach it t o  t he t ube p ort. Wit h on e han d  on t he p ort an d t he ot her on 

t he bag att achm ent, Josh sp asm s. Hi s e lbow hit m y  shoulder kn ockin g t he bag from m y  han d  an d 
squi rtin g t he sti cky brown sauce al l  over bot h  of us. To m y  horror, I reali zed t hat m y  ot her han d  sti l l  he ld 
t he en d of t he p ort t hat in st ead of p rot rudin g an in ch out of t he hole in Josh' s  si de, was n ow han gin g abou 
fi ve in ches down. 

I had n o  i dea what t o  do; I con vin ced t hat I was causin g i rrep arable d am ag e  an d h u rtin g Josh an d he 
cou l dn't even t el l  m e. I was afrai d t o  let go on eit her on e so st a rt ed yellin g for help. Aft er  what felt li ke 
hours, t he s up ervi sor b urst int o t he room to see what al l  t he n oi se was about. She q ui ckly exp lain ed what 
h app en ed an d in on e flui d  m oti on, t he s up ervi sor t ook t he p ort att achm ent, g ra bbed t he chun k  of skin 
a ro un d  t he ho le in Josh' s  si de an d in sert ed t he p ort back int o it s p lace som ewhere in si de Josh' s  st om ac h  
She t hen un h oo ked t he bag of food from t he st an d, t urn ed it up si de d own an d bent t he en d t o  st op t he sti 
d rippin g li q ui d  whi le  st atin g, "I s upp ose I shou ld have showed you t hi s  p art." 

A s  h ard as I t ri ed t o  rem ain calm an d p rofessi on al, aft er I help ed get Josh clean ed up an d chan ged, I fout 
t he n earest rest room t o  wip e  as m uch as I cou ld off m yself an d shed t ears of frust rati on an d reli ef t hat I h 
n ot h u rt p oor Josh. 

N o  on e should ever have t o  feel t hat help less simp ly because of in adequat e  t rainin g .  Wit h t he p rop er 
t rainin g an d vi able p rofessi on al d evelopm ent, school emp loyees can be at least a litt le m ore p rep a red t o  
m eet m edi cal n eeds of st udent s when n o  n urse i s  avai lable. 



Wh en m ost of th e pr ocedur es pert a i ning t o  th e car e of st udents with medical ch al lenges wer e wr itt en, 
m a ny of th e m ost s ev er e  cas es d id n't att end publ ic  s ch ools fu l l  t ime if at a l l. Th os e  st udents wer en't 
i n cl uded i n  r eg ular educat ion classr ooms and h ad th e ir needs met at h ome or i n  a cl in ical s ett in g. 
Th e medical n eeds of st udents h av e  ch anged but the t ime in  each s ch oo l  a llott ed for n urs es and 
.x oper tr a in ing  of s ch ool  employees h as not. Th e s ame people th at o nce wer e  s olely r es po ns ible for 
m eet ing th e educat ional  needs of st udents ar e n ow th e ones being r eq u ir ed t o  a ls o  meet medical 
n eeds. E d ucat ors ar e expect ed t o  ch ange cath et er, mon it or b lood s ugar lev els and det er mine 
pr oper i ns ul i n  dos ages, pr epar e  and h ook up feedi n g  t ube l i nes and i ns ert a s uppos it or y  i nt o  a 
st udent i n  th e m i dst of a s eizur e. Th en th er e  ar e th e m or e  common pr ocedur es of admin ist er in g  a 
v ar iet y of medicat io ns ev er y day, nebu lizers, epipens and i nh alers a l l  p lus know h ow t o  st op a b loody 
n os e  and i mmobi l ize a poss ible br oken ar m u nt i l par ents can be found. 

Th e s car y part of a l l  th is is th at th er e  is no mandat ed s afet y or bas ic first a id r eq u ir ements f or most 
educat ion e m p loyees and only a s elect io n  few j ob cat eg or ies ar e off er ed th e cert ificat io n  class es. 
Ev er y  pers o n  th at wor ks i n  a s ch ool  s ett ing sh ould r eceiv e and m aint ai n  ev er y year, th e A mer ican 
R ed Cr oss B as ic F irst A id and C PR C ert ificat e at no cost t o  th e employees as p art of th e ir 
pr ofess ional  d ev elopment r eq u ir ement. 

Someone h as t o  be r es pons ible for th es e  st udent's needs - we know th at - b ut wh om? Sch ool  
employees h av e  t o  be pr oper ly tr a ined by pr ofess ionals qual ified to d o  th at tr a in ing, n ot by th e 
st udent's p ar ents. Oh, par ents sh ould be part of th e tr a in ing pr ocess becaus e  wh o b est can fiv e 
adv i ce o n  h ow t o  best car e  for th e ir ch i ld but by n o  means sh ould th ey be th e s ole s our ce of tr a in ing. 
O nly aft er pr oper tr a in ing and per iodic r efr esh er s ess ions sh ould th e tr a iners and par ents s ig n  
cons ent for th e s ch ool  e m ployee t o  per for m pr ocedur es th at not long ago could o n ly b e  done i n  a 
c l in ica l  s ett i n g. 

J n  th e oth er h and, th e s ch ool employees m ust be al lowed t o  opt out of th e r es po ns ib i l it y  with out fear 
of r et al iat io n. St aff sh ould not be thr eat ened i nt o  accept in g  d ut ies or t old  th at if th ey want a j ob, th ey 
wi l l. I n  s om e  d istr i cts, employees h av e  s ub m itt ed wr itt en not ice th at th ey ar e p erf or mi n g  th es e  
medical pr oce d ur es s imply becaus e  th ey ar e r eq u ir ed t o  as part of th e " oth er d ut ies as ass i g ned" 
port ion of th e ir j ob d es cr ipt ion and as king th at it be part of th e ir file. Th e l i a b il it y  s car e is a gr ay ar ea 
with employees k nowing ful l  wel l  th at par ents th at want t o  s ue if s om eth i n g  h appens wi l l  go aft er th e 
d istr ict, th at's wh er e th e money is but th e employee st i l l  could at th e v er y  least los e  th e ir j ob if n ot 
m u ch mor e. 

E ducat ors ar e bein g  as ked t o  wear m any h ats i n  s ch oo ls th at oft en r each far beyond ev er yday 
lear ni n g  b ut we ar e n ot n urs es. J ust as we wouldn't as k an ar ch it ect t o  fix a car, we sh ouldn't as k a n  
educat or t o  p er for m med ical pr ocedur es. 

Th a n k  you for your cons ider at io n  of HB 1276 and h elp  s ch ool  employees d o  wh at we ar e r eal ly 
tr a ined t o  d o. 

A udr ey H as ke l l  
806 S. 1 01h St. 
Gr and F or ks, N D  5820 1 
(70 1) 739- 12 10 
L ewis & C lar k E lement ar y  Sch ool  E mployee 
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House Human Services Committee 

North Dakota Board of Nursing 

HB 1276 Relating to Medication administration in schools and an 
exemption to NDCC 43·12.1 -04 Nurse Practices Act 

Chairman Weisz, Vice Chairman Hofstad and members of the Committee. I am Dr. Constance 

Kalanek RN, Executive Director of the North Dakota Board of Nursing. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide information regarding the HB 1276 related to 

medication administration in schools. 

The Board of Nursing: 

1. Licenses approximately: 

• 12, 04 7 Registered Nurses (RN) 

• 3,494 Licensed Practical Nurses (LPN) 

• 898 Advanced Practice Nurses (APRN) 

• 528 APRNs with Prescriptive Authority 

• 520 Unlicensed Assistive Personnel (UAP) and Technicians 

2. Is a nine member board appointed by the governor. 

3. Is a member of the Nurse Licensure Compact which encompasses 24 states. 
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The Board of Nursing supports HB 1276 Medication Administration in primary or secondary 
schools. With that being said, the Board would like to offer the following information: 

• Historically, medication administration in the schools has been supported by the Board of 
Nursing. Over the years the Board has worked with the North Dakota School Nurse 
Organization (NDSNO), North Dakota Department of Health, and North Dakota 
Department of Public Instruction on the delivery of medication in the school setting. 

• The Frequently Asked questions and answers is attached for your information and is also 
available on the website at www.ndbon.org. 



,• 
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Interpretation of language in HB 1276 

In Section 2 of the Bill, a new exemption is proposed for section 43-12. 1-04, subsection 9, of the 

Nurse Practices Act. In essence, the new exemption would allow individuals meeting the 

guidelines established by the proposed language to provide medications, other than by the 

parenteral route, without becoming licensed or registered by the Board of Nursing. I understand 

that the Board of Nursing does not object to this new exemption, and I do not have any concerns 

with regard to the proposed language. 

In Section 1 of the Bill, reference is made to individuals who "choose not to administer 

medication under section 43- 12. 1-04" and to individuals "authorized to administer medication by 

43- 12. 1-04". That language implies that section 43- 12. 1-04, subsection 9, authorizes individuals 

to administer medications. However, I do not believe that section 43-12. 1-04, subsection 9, by 

itself authorizes persons to administer medications; instead, I believe that subsection 9 simply 

allows individuals who are already authorized to administer medications to do so without 

becoming licensed or registered by the Board of Nursing. Accordingly, I think that other 

provisions of chapter 15. 1- 19 need to give the applicable persons authority to administer 

medications. The proposed language in Section 1 could then reference individuals who have 

authority to administer medications and who are exempt under section 43- 12. 1-04, subsection 

9. I do not have any other concerns with Section 1. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Brian Bergeson 

Special Assistant Attorney General 

Thank you for your attention. I am now open for questions. 



SCHOOL NURSING 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
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Below are examples of questions/scenarios that school nurses are faced with everyday. The 
questions and responses were a joint effort among the North Dakota Board of Nursing, the North Dakota 
School Nurse Organization (NDSNO), North Dakota Department of Health, and North Dakota Department 
of Public Instruction. 

1. Who is responsible for assigning the task of medication administration and/or individual health 
care services in the school setting? 
The school administrator is responsible for assignments within the school setting. The child's parent, legal 
guardian, or surrogate has given signed permission to the school to provide requested medication 
administration and /or individual health care services. 

· 

2. Who supervises medication administration in school and assesses individual competency? 
The authority for school staff to administer medications is a relationship between the school and 
the authorizing parent, legal guardian, or surrogate and not with the registered nurse. The 
accountability for safe and effective medication administration is with the school administrator. Nurses 
administering medication in the school are accountable to the Nurse Practices Act. 

3. If a school nurse is present in a school building where medication administration or 
individual health care services have been assigned to someone other than the nurse, 
can the nurse provide training/education to the school staff on safe practices? 
Yes. The nurse may provide training/education to an individual who will provide 
medications and/or health care services in the schools. The nurse may act as a consultant 
to that person but does not actually delegate or retain accountability of the function. 

Is this then considered delegation/supervision and would the school nurse be 
liable if an error occurs? 
No. This is not considered delegation according to the North Dakota Nurse Practices 
Act (NDCC Chapter 43-12.1) or the administrative rules (NDAC Chapter 54-05-04). 

4. What liability exists for the school nurse if a health problem with a student arises 
and the nurse has not been involved in the plan of care? 
The school nurse is required to follow standard emergency procedures. The child's 
parent, legal guardian, or surrogate is ultimately responsible for notifying the school of a 
health concern (i.e. medication administration and/or individual health care services.) The 
school nurse is not liable for relying or acting upon any incorrect or incomplete information 
provided by the school, parent, legal guardian, or surrogate. 

5. A child's 504 plan or IHCP (Individual Health Care Plan) required the child to receive Glucagon 
for hypoglycemia. There is a school nurse present in the school, but only on a limited time basis. 
The school nurse is called in to consult on this issue. 
An Individual Health Care Plan must be developed by the parent and school administrator. The school 
nurse may be involved in the development of the IHCP at which time education may be a component of 
the plan. Glucagon for injection is not used in the stable predictable situation. Emergency care 

· 

procedures must be in place and implemented. 

Approved: 03/03 
Reviewed/Revised: 10/12 



House Bill1276 

January 22, 2013 

Chairman Weisz, Members of the House Human Services Committee 

My name is Karen Macdonald, I am a Registered Nurse and a member of the North Dakota Nurses 

Association. I am a registered lobbyist, representing the association. 

I appear in opposition to HB 1276. Our legislative platform provides for support for legislation 

enhancing access to care, affordability of care and quality of care. 

The bill as written would be opposed by the North Dakota Nurses Association for the following reasons: 

1. The exemption to be included in 43-12.1-04 subsection 9 does not include any statutory 

reference as to who would have oversight ( subsection 9 a. thru f. all include a statutory 

reference or a reference to some entity that would have oversight). 

2. Lines 12-15 are poorly worded. NDCC 43-12.1-04 does not "authorize" anyone to 

administer medications; it states persons ilwho provide medications" are exempt from the 

provisions of the chapter. 

We do understand that administration of medications within the K-12 school systems is becoming more 

complex and creates problems for school administration. Not every school has access to a registered 

nurse to develop and implement a safe program for delegation of medication administration to staff. 

We understand that there are persons who do not want to administer medications to children, nor 

should they unless they accept the responsibility as well as undergo the necessary training. 

What one does with their own children, their own relatives does not need to come under legislative 

scrutiny, but what one is asked to do or agrees to do for non-related children should. This practice will 

go on, but can it be improved under the language of this bill? Not unless the practice can be included 

under someone's purview. There is a saying -"Let George do it." This practice is too important to leave 

it to just anyone. 

We are proposing the bill be amended as follows: 

1. NDCC Chapter 15.1-19 is entitled "School Safety" and includes language regarding many aspects 

of what a school does to keep children safe - establishment of safety patrols, why students may 

use inhalers in school, etc. This is a good place to locate language regarding administration of 

medications in schools. 

2. Included in that section can be the concerns regarding teachers or classified staff who want to 

opt out of the practice. 

3. The section can also include the civil/criminal liability statute. 

4. The exemption sought in this bill can be amended to include a reference to NDCC 15.1-19 -this 

will mirror all of the other exemptions in NDCC 43-12.1-04 subsection 9. 



43-12.1-04. Persons exempt from provisions of chapter. 
This chapter does not apply to a person that is not licensed or registered under this chapter 
and is: 
1. A person that performs nursing interventions in cases of emergency or disaster. 
2. A student practicing nursing as a part of an in-state board-approved nursing education 
program. 
3. A licensed nurse of another state who is in good standing and who is employed in this 
state by the United States government or any of its bureaus, divisions, or agencies. 
4. A nurse licensed by another state or Canada, whose employment requires the nurse to 
accompany and care for a patient in transit for health care. 
5. A nurse licensed by another state whose employment by a resident of that state 
requires the nurse to accompany and care for the resident in North Dakota. 
6. An individual who performs nursing tasks for a family member. 
7. A person that renders assistance pursuant to chapter 23-27. 
8. A person licensed or registered under another chapter of this title and carrying out the 
therapy or practice for which the person is licensed or registered. 
9. A person that provides medications, other than by the parenteral route: 
a. Within a correctional facility, in compliance with section 12-44.1-29; 
b. Within a psychiatric residential treatment facility for children licensed under 
chapter 25-03.2 and North Dakota Administrative Code chapter 75-03-17; 
c. Within a treatment or care center for developmentally disabled persons licensed 
under chapter 25-16; 
d. Within a group home, a residential child care facility, or an adult foster care facility 
licensed under section 50 .. 11-01 or North Dakota Administrative Code chapter 
75-03-16; 
e. Within the developmental center at westwood park, Grafton, to the extent the 
individual who provides medications is a direct training technician or a vocational 
training technician as approved by the department of human services; or 
f. Within a human service center licensed under chapter 50-06. 
10. A nurse currently licensed to practice nursing by another jurisdiction: 
a. Whose practice in another state requires that nurse to attend orientation, 
meetings, or continuing education in North Dakota; 
b. Who serves as a guest lecturer or short-term consultant; or 
c. Who provides evaluation undertaken on behalf of an accrediting organization. 
11. An individual, including a feeding assistant, performing nonhands-on tasks while 
employed in a medicare-funded organization. 
12. A student practicing nursing as part of an out-of-state board-recognized nursing 
education program, upon written notification to the board and contingent upon clinical 
site availability. 
13. An individual who is registered on the state department of health nurse aide registry, 
including a certified nurse aide, home health aide, nurse aide, and medication 
assistant. 



Suggestions for revision of HB 1276 -medication administration in the school systems. 

Section 1. A new section to chapter 15.1-19 of the NDCC is created and reenacted as follows: 

School Medication Administration -Program -Liability. 

1. The board of a school district or the governing body of a non- public school may authorize 

administration of medications to students by establishing a program witbin the school system that 

includes the required parental authorizations, employee training and safeguards necessarv to the 

program implementation. 

2. A teacher or classified staff member who is not employed as a school nurse or physician to 

administer medication may choose to not administer medications to students. 

3. An individual authorized to administer medications is not civilly or criminally liable for any act or 

omission of that individual when acting in good faith while administering medication to a student 

except when the conduct amounts to gross negligence. 

Further- rewrite lines 18-20 as follows: 

(Stem of #9. A person who provides medications, other than the parenteral route:) 

Within a primary or secondary school if the individual has received education and training in 

medication administration ynder NDCC 15.1-19 and has received written consent of the 

student's parent or guardian. 

Karen Macdonald, Lobbyist for the North Dakota Nurses Association 



Monday, March 18, 2013 

Senate Human Services Committee 

Red River Room 

10:30 a.m. 

HB1276 

Chairman Lee and Members of the Human Services Committee: 

I am Jon Martinson with the North Dakota School Boards Association. This bill is introduced on 

behalf of the North Dakota School Boards Association, the North Dakota E ducation Association, 

and the North Dakota Council of Educational Leaders. 

Every day, school personnel dispense medication to children at the request of their parents. 

This practice has gone on for years. Yet these individuals receive no training and are not 

exempt from liability. 

This bill will do three things: 

1. Requires education and training in medication administration for those providing 

medication in schools under policy that establishes a program for providing 

medication to students. 

2. Provides an "opt out" provision for teachers or classified staff members who chose 

not to provide medication. 

3. Provides an exemption from the nurse practices act for those individuals willing to 

provide medication to students provided they receive training, and act in good faith,  

and have written consent from the student's parent or  guardian. 

Training will be provided in administrative rules by the N D  Department of Public Instruction. 

Let me anticipate objections or an amendment from the N D  Department of Health: 

1. They have indicated to us that school personnel who administer medication should be 

trained to a level of certified nurse aide, home health aide, nurse aid, or medication 

assistant. We have NO interest in that level of training. 

2. We are not seeking an exception to the Nurse Aid Registry. As defined in section 23-44-

01 (subsection 6}: "Nurse aid registry" means a listing of individuals who the 

department has determined have successfully completed the requirements established 

by the department to be designated as certified nurse aide, home health aide, nurse aid, 

or medication assistant ... because there is ALREADY an exemption: 



Century Code: 23-44-02 (2) states: 

The health council shall adopt rules to regulate and register an individual who 

receives compensation for engaging in the provision of nursing or nursing

related services to an individual in a health care facility or other setting. The 

rules do not apply to a licensed health care professional practicing within the 

scope of that profession, an unlicensed assistive person under chapter 43-12.1, 

or a volunteer in the course of providing services without pay. In developing the 

rules, the health council shall consult with the state board of nursing and other 

key stakeholders. 

Individuals who provide medication in the school setting do not receive compensation for 

providing medication and would therefore fall under the exemption. 

If an individual in a school setting is already on the nurse aid registry, this individual would 

simply need to opt-out under provisions of the bill because more strict provisions apply to them 

because of their status on the registry. 



TESTIMONY O F  DAKOTA DRAPER, 
NORTH DAKOTA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION 

H B  1 276 
MARCH 1 7, 201 3  

Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee: 

My names is Dakota Draper and I ' m  here representing the N orth Dakota 

Education Association (NDEA). I stand in favor of HB 1 276. 

As educators we are committed to doing all  we can to help ensure the safety of 

North Dakota students and the people who work in schools. Because in many 

districts student medical needs have become more com mon and labor 

intensive, teachers and classified employees are being asked to perform 

medical procedures that they are not trained for and are not comfortable with 

performing. What this bil l  does for teac hers is threefold: First, it gives teac hers 

and classified employees the liability protection they need to dispense 

medication to students who need it. Second, for those that c hoose to take on 

this important task, it provides training that they need to dispense the 

medication correctly. Finally, it gives teac hers and classified employees the 

abi l ity to "opt out" of performing a task that they may be uncomfortable with . 

Along with NDEA ' s  testimony, I am submitting the testimony of a member that 

could not be here today, Audrey Haskel l  from Grand Forks . Her testimony detai ls  

an experience she had caring for a student with a feeding tube. This legislation 

will prevent others from having to perform such a procedure. 

Thank you for the opportunity to address this important issue on the behalf of the 

members of NDEA. I am available for any questions from the committee. 



Good morning,  

My name is Aud rey and I 've been an ad ministrative assistant in  the G F PS district for 
almost 16 years . Before that I was a special ed . Para in a self-contai ned resou rce room 

with students with emotional d isabi l ities and worked with physical ly chal lenged students 
d u ring summer school .  I ' m  only tel l ing you about my experience in the publ ic schools 

as backg round i nformation for the rest of my testimony. 

During one of my first summers in the d istrict, I was working with a young man who was 
non-verbal ,  bl ind , wheel chai r  bound and on a feed ing tube. During the first few days , I 

was shown how to meet h is needs;  d iapering,  transferring to and from the wheelchair, 
and the feed ing tube. I watched stud iously to make sure I memorized every step of the 

demonstration because I knew it would be one of the few times I would see the process 

from start to fin ish before I was expected to do it myself. The first day went wel l  

although I was pretty shaky and no one even peaked in to check to see if  I was doing 
O K. The fol lowing day was a whole d ifferent story. J ust as I was getting his bag of 

pureed lu nch sifted and started to hook the tube into the attachment that protruded out 

of his side, he spasmed . His arms flew in all d i rections knocking the stand over send ing 
the sticky mess sai l ing wherever the tube wh ipped . I had been in  the process of 

securing the tube into the stint and when he jerked and jumped , he knocked my arm 
and I heard a sucking sound . To my horror, the end of the stint tha� is supposed to be 
inside th is you ng man's side was now dang l ing th ree inches outside h is stomach . I had 

no idea if I was h u rting h im or what kind of damage I had done to h i s  inside hookups.  I 
cal led for help as I was trying to contain the stream of food that was sti l l  squ i rt ing al l  
over me and my charge. F i nal ly, my supervising teacher can into the room to see what 
all the commotion was about. I was trying to stay calm and at the same time explain 
what had happened thinking she needed those detai ls .  She very calmly took the end of 

the tube from my clenched fingers and gently pushed the excess tubing and stint 
attach ment back into its proper p lace in his side al l  the wh ile sayin g ,  " I  g uess I should 
have showed you this part ,  it sometimes freaks people out the first t ime it happens."  All 
I could do was m umble someth ing about needing to go wash up and once I was safely 

locked away from everyone else, I sta rted to shake,  cried a b it ,  and then I got angry. I 
prom ised myself that I wou ld do everything in my power to never feel that helpless 
again and find out how I cou ld make sure others never wou ld either. I started looking 
for outlets of viable train ings for classified employees and professional development 

offeri ngs that would empower paraprofessional ,  secretaries and other school employees 
to be as prepared as they could be in our jobs. 

Aud rey Haskel l  
Lewis & Clark Elementary 

1100 13th Ave. S. I Grand Forks, ND 58201 

audrey.haskell@gfschools.org 

701-746-2285 ext. 1941 



Testimony 

House Bill 1 2 76 
Senate H u m a n  Services Committee 

Health Resou rces Division 

Monday, March 1 8, 201 3;  1 0 :30 a.m. 

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Chairman Lee and members of the committee. My name is 
Darleen Bartz, PhD, and I am the Health Resources Section Chief for the North 
Dakota Department of Health. I am here today to propose amendments to the 
engrossed House Bill l 276. 

This bill  relates to medication administration in primary or secondary schools 
and provides an exemption from the Nurse Practice Act. However, as written, 
thi s  bill does not provide an exemption from the Department of Health' s  Nurse 
Aide Registry requirements, which includes medication assistants. The 
amendment that we propose would provide for that exemption. 

Representatives from the Department of Health met with members of the 
School Board Association and other school representatives prior to the 
legislative session. The school representatives were given information about 
requirements for registration as a medication assistant on the Department of 
Health ' s  Nurse Aide Registry, including the requirement to be under the 
supervision of a l icensed nurse to perform delegated medication administration. 

The individuals representing the schools indicated that was not the model for 
medication administration they intended to use in the school systems, as nurses 
are not present in every school .  However, an exemption to the Nurse Aide 
Registry was not included when the bill was introduced. 

Without the exemption to the Nurse Aide Registry requirements, use of 
individuals in the school setting to provide nursing or nursing related services, 
including medication administration, may result in a l iability risk for the school 
unless the individual performing this service is on the department' s  nurse aide 
registry and supervised by a nurse. Also, use of an individual who is on the 
department' s  registry without supervision of a licensed nurse would result in the 
individual being subject to a discipl inary action by the department and also may 
create a l iability risk for the school,  as the school would be employing someone 
to work outside their scope of delegated medication administration. 
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Guidance from the Department of Health ' s  legal counsel was to add an 
exemption to the Nurse Aide Registry requirements for individuals 
administering medications in a primary or secondary school under a program 
established under section 1 5 . 1 - 1 9-23 . A copy of the proposed amendments i s  
attached. 

That concludes my testimony. I would be happy to respond to any questions 
you may have. 



PROPOS E D  A M E N D M ENTS TO E N G ROSSED H O U S E  BILL N O .  1276 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section}} with "sections}} 

Page 1, l ine 1, after "15.1-19-23}} insert ", 23-44-03}} 

Page 1, l ine 3, after "Act}} insert II and the exemption of medication administration in primary or 

secondary schools from the Nurse Aide Registri
, 

Page 2, after line 4, insert: 

11SECTION 3. Section 23-44-03 of the North Dakota Century Code i s  c reated and enacted 

as follows: 

23-44-03. Exemption. 

M edication administration by an individual within a primary or secondary school under 

a program established under section 15.1-19-23 is exempt from the requi rements of t h is 

chapter, if the individual has received education and training in medication administration and 

has received written consent of the studenfs parents or guardian.�� 
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